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The people of Vodnany promise their obedience to
Oldfich of Rozmberk if they break their promise and
oath that they took because he allowed them

to build a wall around the town again:

In Vodnany, 3* March 1420 (The quoting

is modified a little bit because the original

letter was written in the old Czech language):

“We mayor, aldermen and all the community

of Vodiiany town, we all together and unanimously
ask everybody reading or hearing this letter

to promise and swear to the gentleman Oldrich of
Rozmberk and also to his successors to allow us

to surround Vodnany by the wall and the ditch

as it used to be. And if we make him angry

or we do more harm than good we promise

him the right obedience as we gave

a letter to his father and other masters
who had been in the war with him
and the letter confirms that.

In addition, as a gesture of our

good will, we enclose our town

seal with this letter which was

posted in Vodnany 1420,

on the 2" Sunday

of fasting”

Rynes$ova, Blazena (ed.):
Listéf a listinaf
Oldficha z Rozmberka.
Vol. 1. 1418 - 1437.
Praha 1929,

No 23,p. 13 - 14.
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In the 1* part of the 19" century perhaps all clerks of almost all the institutions (from
the municipal council, the Pracher region office, the Prague vice-chamberlain office
to the Prague regional office) were busy solving the troubles over the walls and the
adjoining buildings. Between 1808 — 1810 there were sold 5 bastions probably under
the pressure of the owners of the adjacent gardens. The bastions were sold to'the free-
holders who had to sign up to keep them in a good condition at their own expense
and to respect the pre-emptive right of the town of Vodnany. Later the sale was que-
ried and it became a millstone for the town. There was also an argument when sell-
ing the Bavorov gate in 1817 which wasn't finally realized after a year-long arguing.
Then there still existed a barbican. The same year the townsfolk of the church quarter
asked to build a new gate with a bridge leading from the small market place behind
the church through the north wall between the houses No 75 and 76

(now No 34 and 36 in the Piseckd street) and over the dean’s moat to the mill-race.
After a year it was permitted, it was paid by the applicants and the municipal council
kept an eye on its maintenance. At the end of the 18" century there started to be built
the first buildings in the moat.

The check of the Vodiiany walls by a technician of the Prachei region office in 1830
reported the following state: “The town walls, as a consequence of their bad structure
and acting the time, partly lie in ruins and on many parts they need repairing. Then the
walls of the moat towers standing at the Pisek and Bavorov gates should be pulled down
in their upper parts and after avoiding the dampness they must be covered in'a brick
layer in plaster” The next year the maintenance was thought to be handed over the
owners of the adjoining properties but only a few of them were willing to accept it.

In 1833 the regional office decided on leaving adjoining parts of the both inner walls
to the applicants to free using including the possibility to build up over the level up
to 2 fathoms. “The outer wall (ie. the outer brickwork of the ditch) remained in the care
of the town.” The town guaranteed the owners of the adjoining properties for the
possible damage caused by the collapse of their wall.

In 1839 the Prague vice-chamberlain office allowed the municipal council to demol-
ish the Bavorov and Budéjovice gates with a view to making the town more beautiful
and to widening the entrance and exit of the town. The town had to deal with the
requests of the owners of the flats over the both gates. These gates are still recorded
in the land registry plan from 1837. After pulling down the both gates the function

SUOIIBOYNI0] Y} ATNJUSD ;9T SY) UJ "W} SUIES 3Y) J& S1UD UMO) ) SpIemo) Jurury
UoIP UMO) 31} pauio] ‘suorseq onewstid jo mox ren3ar e yim Areurdrio 9redurer
S)] "Yeour paysI[qelsa-A[Mau 3y} 0} SYUeY) AJUO J[2S)T PUSJIp 0} J[qe Udq ALY Aeur
umo) 3} A1juad G T aY) ur og “Sursnoy umoy Surpuedxs a1 Jo ainssaxd a1y Topun
SEM UDTUM [[eM UTRW 31} 193J& Y0o[ 03 sant[iqissod pue Asuowr ySnous pey umo)

a1 197e] Jou A[qeqoid Jng ‘wa)sAs [[em Y} JO UOISUIXS 9} 03 P AIMUD ,ST Y}

Ul SJUSAS TeM SWOY 3Y) SULIND UMO]) [} JO JBIIY) JO3IIP Y, 'SIUO [[e 350y} £01ISap
0} £sea £19A 2q P[NOd J1 0S PUE paq PIjos A12A € Jou OJut Jnd pue MO[[eYS dToM S[[eM
37} JO SUOTJEpUNOJ 3]} PUE P3)I3[3oU Sem ddueUSjUTRW JUTPINg YT, *3[qeuonsanb st
SUOTJEOYI1I0] 3] JO dFeTUep [BUOIUSIUT 3Y) JO JU)XD USY) YT, ‘Teak Surmor[oy ay ur
urege yo)Ip oY) pue s[[em aY) p[ing 03 papruriad o 95UIPaqo JO JUSWIIIWOD PIdIO]
a1} Jo siseq o) uQ “dn pay[y YoIIp Y} pue umop pafind s[rem S} pey oYM JIquIZoy
JO YILIPIO Aq pardnodo sem AUBUPOA 61§ U "UMO) Y] JO [[BJUMOP ) PISNED SSIU
-921ja1ed 1191} Ing I9PPE[q parepur oy £4q AJuo Surky wry puas 0) wiy e paySne|
sjueIqequr pajednodoQ dTUOIYD SA(EH YY) UT pres 11 Se AwIe [[ews AIoA & [im
aured AUrsus aY) 3sed PIUOTUSW SA0QR PU0IIS ) UT '18ISUNY Jo J[eIoH £q 90F T UT
pUe YIoquizoy Jo YoLIpul( £q G6ET UI — SALIMULD (G PUE [ 9Y) JO WIN) Y} Je Suon
-e2Y1}10§ 3y} Jo uonounj pood L1204 jou e 0) Jurod umo) 3y Jo suorednddo (1A
A1muad 6T oY) ut A[feadss JySy e Auew dn jnd £5y) woym

IMm YIaquuzoy jo Aseudp apqou oy JsureSe 1omod [eor oy jo sjurod or3arens oy
‘eIWAYOg JO YINOS Y} Ul ‘PIULI0} AUBUPOA NoSId pue 2140(3png 94s9D Yam 1ayzador,
"SuUMO) Te£ox Aj[eam Jsea] 9Y) PUe JSI[BTS Sy} SUOWE PaYURI JT 0S USAT "UMO)

e iarahivg siesd pasmy suml ~hEERY Y S

Z 51509 Yooy

of the town walls in Vodniany finally disappeared in the 1* half of the 19" century.
Except for that the other passageways from the town were broken through. On the
south-west edge the moat from Hrn¢ifska street was spanned by the solid bridge
instead of the footbridge. The similar access was made also from the present
Mokrého street. In 1858 the local brewing citizens got the suitable space for creating
the purposeful beer cellars near the then Bavorov gate and under its bridge because
they bought the south part of the moat which belonged to the deanery.

On the basis of the required expert opinions and available solutions of the building
intentions especially with the former bastions several times there was invited the
chief commissioner of The Office for the preservation of historical monuments Mr.
Sebek to Vodnany in the 30s of the 20 century. In the surviving records he pointed
out the extensive damage and seediness of the walls and he warned about the threat
of the wall collapse. According to his recommendation an architect of Vodnany
Augustin Ktizek worked out the construction plans but their realization dropped off
because of the finances. In 1939 - 1940 during the building of a public building

No 81 near the defunct Bavorov gate there was uncovered a former barbican which
was later filled again. The adjacent land within the town fortifications was put to an
archaeological exploration in 1999. The present garden reminds the possibilities

of usage of the former moat and the ditch in the peaceful times of our history.

A historian of the town Dr. Viclav Mostecky thought the place had been used both
for agriculture and as firing range or place for some handcrafts. But the existing
archaeological research hasn’t confirmed that yet.

“Today the former town ditch has a straight flat bottom which raises only along the in-
ner brickwork. In danger it may be possible to fill it with water from the nearby river
Blanice and its small tributaries.” But about real filling with water there are no reports.
Still it isn’t possible to answer the question where water could have been brought to
the ditch from. In its southern part there was a drain.

The town of Vodnany had the outer moat wall plastered inappropriately in the 70s
of the 20" century. After 2000 there arose the project to get the outer walls among
the property of the town and to repair them supported by the grants. First there was
repaired the wall in the Palackého street. In 2006 — 2007 there were bought out other
parts of the outer walls in the Zeyer’s park and in the Square of 5. kvétna which were
repaired in 2009 supported by the Europian fund for regional rise.
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The former town Tyn gate also called the Budéjovice gate was decorated to welcome the emperor
Francis |. and the empress Karolina in 1833. The historian of the town Dr. Vaclav Mostecky
recorded this festive event in this way:
“The memorable visit happened on the 31* July. On the borders of the Prdcheri region and the Libéjovice estate
in Sedlec there were the imperial couple with their 30-membered retinue awaited and welcome by many coun-
try people, in the village of Ujezd there was built the triumphal arch, there were honoured guests welcome by the
Schwarzenberg officials, by school children and the clergy with a dean Jedlicka. From Vodnany there went the
townspeople on horses in the lead with a postmaster Jires and they accompanied the parade to the town where
the horses were changed. In front of the decorated Budéjovice gate there could be everywhere heard: Glory be!

g = . Long live the emperor! On the outer columns there was written the inscription Vivat, on the gate itself, covered
L///ﬂ addite / (ﬁ”ﬂ /7; (,// — - ‘ The bridge of St n of Nepomuk in flower blossoms, there could be read: Francisco Patri — Carolinae Matri — Wodnianienses.

- > : - behind there used to be the Pisek gate [ In the square there were built columns decorated with needles, with the Austrian eagle and the Czech lion. There

40 M icreer Sil

took part the official welcoming, where there came many important personalities like the county commissar a knight
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of Kunratice, the dean with the clergy from all around, teachers with their pupils, the mayor with the town council,
guilds with 12 banners and the Jewish community with Torah. The townspeople wanted to show their loyality to the
ruler so they intended to pull the imperial coach through the town but the emperor didn't allow it. After changing the
horses they went on to Skocice, Drahonice, Strakonice, Plzefi, Zatec, Louny and through Karlin to Prague.”

The north moat wall Mostecky, Vaclav: Dé&jiny byvalého kralovského mésta Vodnan. lll. ¢ast. Praha 1940, p. 164.

The west moat wall

R A. K¥izka Street

Husova Street
there used to be the Bavorov gate
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UlzBslesien The SE moat (Herites’s éarden)

In February 1843 a pharmacist Antonin Herites along
with his mother Antonia bought a house No 1 in the
Vodnany square and the south-east part of the town
moat from the New gate to the Budéjovice gate where
there was a garden. His son, FrantiSek Herites, a writer
and a Vodriany mayor for some time, kept it in his
memories like that:

“I remember going to the garden only with my mother. She
never went across the square, always along the side streets,
with a woollen scarf over her shoulders, with a white cap
on her head, she thanked for the greetings to all people she
met. And when the fruit was picked and the servants
carried the full baskets in front of her she generously
shared the harvest from the trees with the folks. The old
garden in the moat plays a major role in my childhood
memories and I think I would be able to show very exactly
where there stood each tree and which fruit it had and
where there were each flower and herbs which my father
planted with a great interest and real knowledge.”

Herites, FrantiSek: Vzpominkova €rta. In: Almanach: kral.
mésto Vodriany a okoli. Vodriany 1914, p. 95.
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The passageway — Heritesova Street The bridge — Heritesova Street ° The gardens in the south moat
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